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Senate Governmental Organization Committee
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And the Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians
July 29, 2008
State Capitol Building, Room 3191
Sacramento, California

SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  ...will be some members, hopefully, that will join us at some point in time.  But, I’d like to convene the Senate Committee on Governmental Organization.  Today is an informational hearing and today, obviously, the purpose is to examine the terms and conditions of the amendment, state gaming compact concluded between the State of California and Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians.  
I do want to thank everyone for being here today.  I will tell you that obviously, this particular compact, in my view, has some of the more generous, one of the more generous compacts, I think, to the State of California in terms of revenue sharing.  I’d like to talk about that today.  I’d like to go over some of the terms and conditions of the compact, and obviously, we’d like to talk about some more comprehensive provisions of the compact mostly dealing with employee and patron protections, as well as some of the auditing and compliance issues.
I can say that we’re very, very happy to have the chairman of Shingle Springs here today, legislative counsel to the Governor, and members of the Governor’s negotiating team.  Although their testimony and discussions will be part of the record, I can tell you it will give the entire Legislature a much better understanding of the compact’s provisions and the rationales behind this particular decision.  
I will say at the end of the day this hearing will provide the Legislature with the information necessary to have a vote on the Senate Floor.  As you probably know, the Senate G.O. Committee has made it part and parcel of our charge to vet all of the compacts going through the Legislature and today is no different.  This hearing will follow the very similar format.  We will hopefully, go through the compact, amendment by amendment.  Just if you’re keeping count, that’s 17 amendments as we start to move through this process.  And the goal of it is to also hear from, if you will, El Dorado County which is also on the agenda regarding the MOU and the tribe and the county.  The goal of it is to think about whether or not MOU has any unique provisions that are worthy of discussion.

I can say also that there have been some concerns raised in this compact.  I’d like to go through those question by question as we get further into the hearing.  But, I can tell you that we do try to examine each compact.  They are unique.  We don’t believe in boiler plate and the goal of it is to make sure that the constituencies of the State of California and also the tribal constituencies’ issues are met and comply with federal law.  
So at that time, at this time, why don’t we go ahead and begin the hearing.  We’d like to hear from Chairman Nick Fonseca and tribal counsel, if we could, Michelle LaPeña and the tribal administrator, Marilyn Delgado.  If you could please come forward and then we will go through some of the questions I have in terms of the particular compact.  
Thanks for joining us.  Good morning, good morning.  Like many tribal governments I believe you have a very interesting history, story on how you arrived at this point in terms of this amended compact.  And I’d like to ask you some questions for the record to maybe establish just how we got here and then hopefully begin to build a record for the Legislature. 
So, first, Mr. Chairman, if you could, just some general information about the tribe, how many members are in Shingle Springs tribe, and how many folks are actually living on the reservation?

MR. NICK FONSECA:  Thank you, Chairman Florez and committee members for inviting me to speak on behalf of the tribe and the amended negotiated compact between the state the Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians.  
The 160 acre Shingle Springs rancheria was established in 1920 by the federal government.  The rancheria is located just off of Highway 50 in El Dorado County with its closest point coming just 57 feet from the highway.  In 1965, a realignment of Highway 50 left the tribe without access to this rancheria and effectively turned the Shingle Springs rancheria into an island.  Our home became the only land locked rancheria in the State of California. 

Today there are over 500 tribal members of the Shingle Springs Band, and they range in age from two months all to 83 years old.  Approximately one half of the membership is under the age of 18.  And also approximately over 50 percent of the tribe is under the poverty level.  Over 140 tribal members live on the rancheria.  Our tribe is growing in numbers and we have been seeking ways to provide for this unprecedented growth. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  The reservation land is 160 acres?
MR. FONSECA:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And can you give us a quick history of its development?

MR. FONSECA:  It was, it became a rancheria in 1920.  Approximately—I think there was about three people that were living up in the rancheria up until about 1970 or so, and then they started getting water and infrastructure up on the rancheria and I think it grew up, the population grew up to about 25 or 30.  And then back in 1997 or ’96, we ran a—we had a tent up, a sprung structure where were ran 500 slot machines for one day and was closed down.  And—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What year was that?

MR. FONSECA:  That was in 1997, 1996.  In 1997 we opened up again for five months and we ran bingo and five table games and we were shut down because of a court order on the road restricting us from using the road for commercial purposes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And was there any sort of mitigation discussions at that time given the developments that occurred during 1996 and ’97, or is this just a tribe, in essence, looking for economic development.

MR. FONSECA:  Yes, that’s correct.  It was the tribe looking for economic development and security.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You also mentioned the word landlocked.  The tribe was land locked.  Give us—
MR. FONSECA:  In 19—okay.  In approximately 1967 or thereabout, they put Highway 50 through the reservation.  There actually happened to be two reservations at the time.  There was the Verona Band of Homeless Indians or the Shingle Springs tract which was the 160 acres.  And there was another tract off to the side, was called the El Dorado tract.  When they put Highway 50 through there they had given the, they were also in the ‘60s, they were also dereg—or it was the Rancheria Termination Act, and they were looking to terminate the El Dorado piece, and they did.  And at that time, that’s when we became landlocked.  And we have a, well, we had a lawsuit on us, but we settled out of court last year in the Ninth District preventing us from using that road for commercial purposes, so. . .
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was there any thought that there would be direct access to the reservation during the building of Highway 50?

MR. FONSECA:  There was some plans, I understand, to put a underpass or a like a frontage road that went along Greenstone Road and underneath the freeway, but it never materialized.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So there wasn’t any sort of direct promise that would be some direct access to the reservation during the building of this?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, there was a lot of stuff said back then, but I wouldn’t go so far as to say that there were—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Wasn’t necessarily in written form or anything.

MR. FONSECA:  Well, that’s hard to find, so . . .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.   And so essentially, you used the private road to get to the reservation?

MR. FONSECA:  Yeah, we’ve been using a road that’s called Reservation Road that goes to the homeowners’ association.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  And can you tell us briefly what this compact means to your tribe?  What it means to the future of the tribe?  It’s a broad, general question.

MR. FONSECA:  A broad, general, yes.  Accessibility of the tribe.  I look it, you know, as economic development and a stepping stone to further enhance the tribe’s economic and welfare of the tribe in the next 50, forever.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what would be the prospects of the tribe if it didn’t have an opportunity to operate a gaming facility?  

MR. FONSECA:  Well, at the time, without the overpass that we’re putting up and paying for we wouldn’t have access, commercial access to the tribe and therefore, we would not have any—we can’t put a store up there.  We can’t have a gas station.  All of my tribal members don’t have either cars or driver’s licenses, so you know, it’s like seven miles to the closest anything.  And it’s just, the whole thing was to pay for the overpass.  That’s what it’s all about.  It’s about access to our reservation and so that we can do what we want to do with it and what we need to do with it for the benefit of the tribe.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I want to get into that in a moment about the paying of the overpass.  But, you currently have a 1999 compact.

MR. FONSECA:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The original compact you’re operating under, that was granted you about 1,500 slots.  Is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  It was 1650 Class IIs and 300, or 1651 Class IIs and 349 Class IIIs.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so you got that down to the point.

MR. FONSECA:  Oh yeah, I’ve been thinking about it for a long time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But, the licenses had to be surrendered.  So what exactly happened to the licenses?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, the tribe is actually purchased almost a thousand licenses through the lottery that because we weren’t able to play them within a year, we had to give them back to the state.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the reason for that, just for the record so we can understand why you had the--
MR. FONSECA:  Because it’s a Gaming Commission regulation.  California State Gaming Commission.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What was your expectation in 1999 when you entered into the compact?  I mean, was there immediate plans for a casino?  What were you planning at the time of this, the ’99 compact?

MR. FONSECA:  We were planning this casino back in 1999.  But, we had higher aspirations of getting more licenses which didn’t materialize, because there was a big controversy about how many machines should be in the state, so, and I don’t think there’s any right now available.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And even if you wanted to operate, I believe, under the 1999 compact, there weren’t any licenses available, is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  That’s correct.  I have 75 extra licenses, but I think I’m going to lose them this month because of the same reason I just previously explained to you about the Gaming Commission.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the amended compact provides you with a nine-year extension, is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  For what?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The ’99 compact allowed you a nine-year extension.

MS. MICHELLE LaPEÑA:  The compact amendment is a 20-year term.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  A 20-year term.  Okay.  Okay.  In terms of the actual building of the facility at this point in time, are you, what happens if this compact is passed by the Legislature?  What’s your time frame?

MR. FONSECA:  If it passes under a regular bill, our time frame would be January 1st.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Of?

MR. FONSECA:  Of this next year.  In approximately five months.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s go on to the amendment two, if we could, the authorized facility.  And before we start there, let me just ask the basic question in the 1999 compact you were allowed to build two casinos, is that correct?
MR. FONSECA:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And yet in the amended compact, this compact you’re only allowed to build one.  Is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what’s the reason for that?  In terms of negotiation, why two and now one?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, originally, and the 1999 compact that was a boiler plate and it was a term that was put in there.  We were happy with that, although, of course we would like to have five or six casinos, but we can’t.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So was this a concession on your part?

MR. FONSECA:  Yes, it was.  Yeah, we think it’s a concession on our part.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So there is no plan for a second casino.

MR. FONSECA:  We may expand, not at this time.  I think the first one just about killed me.   And I don’t plan on putting up another casino.  Maybe my tribe has plans later on down the line, and that’s a unique thing about a tribe is I don’t know what they’re going to do in 50 years, and I don’t want to tie their hands, either.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, I think the question is following your statement is this doesn’t tie the tribe’s hands in terms of an addition ____ vantage point.

MR. FONSECA:  No it doesn’t.  I could actually put another casino right across the street from the one there, and then put a walkway across and it would be connected.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s go on to amendment three if we could, the revenue contribution, and spend a little time here on the revenue side of this.  Obviously, it’s the reason the Governor negotiates these compacts in order to get the best deal for the sovereign called the State of California.  And I’d like to see if I can get your thought process on this.  
Under the amended compacts, the tribe is entitled to operate a total of 5,000 ____.

MR. FONSECA:  That is correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And is that sufficient from your vantage point given the market where you’re at in the current market for growth of the tribe, etcetera?

MR. FONSECA:  We think so.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And can I get your perspective on the cap on the machines?  Obviously, looking at your compact wondering why your tribe should have unlimited machines.  Was that discussed, the tradeoff between unlimited and the cap?
MR. FONSECA:  Well, it was discussed and we don’t think that we can run more than 5,000 machines in the next 20 years.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You know we’re on the record for all this, right?

MR. FONSECA:  I just said “think”.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m kidding.  (LAUGHTER)  So, 5,000 slots will get you through 20 years given your market.  Is that what you’re telling us?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, there’s also a provision in the compact where we can go back for renegotiation, so . . .
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Alright.  So you’re keen on that, so just in case we can go back to the Governor’s office and try to do that.  I guess my thought is if you look at the cap from the perspective of revenues to the state, and given more machines, a bigger percentage of revenues to the state, I’m wondering what’s the purpose of the cap?  I guess more a question for the Department of Finance, but if the State of California as it’s trying to bring revenues in, the argument is that having a cap somehow caps the State of California’s revenues, as well.  I was just wondering was that a concession on the state’s part or your part or . . ?

MR. FONSECA:  I think it was a concession on our part.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any thought on the ramp up time to 5,000 slots?  Is there a ramp up period?

MR. FONSECA:  Years.  We think that we can only run approximately, I don’t know, 3,500 or so within the next couple years.  That’s what we think the markets will hold.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Of course for the financing of the facility.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ma’am, can you state your name?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Yeah, my name’s Michelle LaPeña, tribal attorney.  For the financing of the casino, of course, we had to do market analysis and the market analysis showed us that 5,000 was more than, more machines than the tribe could properly operate in the next 10, 15 years.  And it’s hard to know what the market will be in 20 years from now, but 3,500 is really our maximum for the market at this point in time and based on our studies.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let’s talk about payments to the state in a little more detail if we could.  Under the amended compact, the tribe has agreed to pay the state 20 percent of the first $200 million of net win, and 25 percent of net win above $200 million.  Is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  That is correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Are you aware of any other compact or tribe that’s obligated to pay 20 percent of $200 million of net win and as high as 25 percent for wins above 200 million?

MS. LaPEÑA:  In California I’m not sure.  You know, we have looked at other compacts and we know that there is a draft of the North Fork compact which does provide for higher revenues than we would be paying under this compact.  But, that is one that’s not been--

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you read the North Fork compact, because we haven’t seen it.

MS. LaPEÑA:  It’s a compact that’s out there.  We have heard about it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was that an out compact that’s out there within the Governor’s office and therefore you’ve been molded to that particular compact?

MS. LaPEÑA:  No, it’s something that we know is, you know, all states are looking to generate revenues from, as a result of negotiations with tribes.  Some states have been able to achieve a higher level of revenue sharing--

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, the reason I ask, I mean, you use North Fork for an example.  I won’t go back to it, but you have a 400 person tribe.  Is that correct?  You just mentioned.  

MR. FONSECA:  Five hundred.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Five hundred.  That’s pretty sizeable.  And I’m just wondering whether you’re paying pretty large percent of your revenues to the state given that large of a tribe as compared to—

MR. FONSECA:  Well, absolutely we’d like to pay any, nothing.  But, with that being said, we, you know, we want to pay our fair share.  And we think that it’s good for the tribe.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well that’s why we’re here.

MS. LaPEÑA:  And the tribe has been in negotiations for many years with the State of California, and this is an opportunity for them to come to an agreement with the state.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand.  We’re just trying to get an understanding just a little bit of a different compact.  For example, your payments based on revenue.  Correct?  Versus a percentage based on the number of machines.
MR. FONSECA:  Yeah, some of them are based off of machines.  There’s even one compact here that is based off how many tribal members there are in the tribe, which I think is ridiculous.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, but do you think, from your vantage point, this is a more advantageous structure for the tribe being, in essence, taxed to use a better word, in terms of the revenue versus, if you will, on a per slot basis.  I mean, how would you weigh that?  Better?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, absolutely it’s better than paying on a per slot basis.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Because other tribes pay about 15 percent on slots between 2,000 and 5,000 slots, and 25 percent on slots above, if you will, 5,000, 7,500.  And I’m just wondering given that your cap at five and now we’re not basing it on slots, but rather basing it on revenue.  And $200 million cap and then above that a certain percentage higher than that.  I’m just wondering if that is a bit of a different structure than we’ve seen in this committee, and I’m just kind of figuring out who came up with that structure.  Was it something that you’ve ran the numbers on?  Is it something the Governor’s office . . ?
MS. LaPEÑA:  We have run calculations of figures for based on expected revenues.  It’s difficult, really, for us to sit here and tell you whether this tribe will pay more or less than other tribes.  We don’t have the other tribes’ figures.  We don’t know the amounts they pay to the state.  And so it’s really hard for us to compare it.  It is a different formula.  All of the compacts that have come out over the last four years, five years, have all had different formulas.  And it’s hard for us to know exactly where our, where this tribe falls in terms of the levels of revenues that will be paid to the state, whether it’s higher or lower.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is that to assume, then, that the Governor’s office are not going to include any of your revenues in this budget cycle?

MS. LaPEÑA:  No, we know what this tribe will pay.  We just don’t know what it, how it compares to others.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let’s just—

MR. FONSECA:  I also know that, excuse me, that once we get our debt paid off that the tribe will be doing very well, so . . .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask a couple questions, if we could, on the tribe’s debt for a moment, since you mentioned it.  Or at least the HOV lane, Highway 50 issue.  The tribe can deduct 5.2 million?

MR. FONSECA:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that right?  

MR. FONSECA:  Per year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that goes per year per payments to what?

MR. FONSECA:  For payments to the county for HOV lanes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that 20 year gets you an approximate number of what, 104 million?

MR. FONSECA:  That’s correct, yeah, which I believe the county is going to use to bond against, to do their—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, now in the order of payment, just maybe being an old banker, the first paid then is the county and then the state after?  Or is it the state being paid and therefore—what’s the first cash out on that structure?

MS. LaPEÑA:  The first cash out would be to the state, not on the HOV lane, because the HOV lane payment isn’t made until the end of the first year of the tribe being in operation.  So the county payments would come after the state.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and that’s the first year.  And the second year, so as years go forward, I mean, the obligation is simultaneous, or is it always going out to pay for this particular highway project first?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Yeah, it will always, the payment will be made— 

MR. FONSECA:  It’s earmarked for that project, yeah.
MS. LaPEÑA:  Yeah, the payment will be made to the county pursuant to the terms of the MOU that the tribe has in the county.  The tribe will receive a credit against their payments to the state based on what they’ve paid.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how is the project, the HOV lane, where is it in terms of the status of it?  Is this the beginning, the middle, near the end?

MR. FONSECA:  I believe it’s a canned project approved by SACOG sitting on the shelf, and which is lacking funding.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So in other words, this is on the list and yet $104 million worth of dollars you’re contributing is going to complete this over 20 years.

MR. FONSECA:  I don’t think it’s going to take that long.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re going to pay it back over 20 years, but it’s going to be—what’s the time frame for completion?

MR. FONSECA:  I do not know that right now.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  You’re paying for the full cost of the lane?  The HOV lane?

MR. FONSECA:  I believe so. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And are you responsible for the maintenance of the lane?

MR. FONSECA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just the initial construction.

MR. FONSECA:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Alright.  And from your perspective, why an HOV lane?  I mean, why is it important that the tribe pay for this?  

MR. FONSECA:  Well, in negotiating with the county or in a, the MOU, the county, that was their biggest concern.  We mitigate, so we did.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the tribe also is, has built a $45 million off ramp to Highway 50, as well?

MR. FONSECA:  Yes, that’s correct.  Yeah, it’s a high speed flyover type of an off ramp.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And there’s no offset for the off ramp, is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  No, there’s not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you can’t deduct the cost from the revenues you’re obligated to pay now for the HOV lane.

MR. FONSECA:  No, no, no.  It’s separate.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay. And this isn’t a private off ramp.  This is an off ramp that’s part of the public highway system.  

MR. FONSECA:  Hmmmm...

MS. LaPEÑA:  It’s a mixture of public and also any reservation road.  Once you enter into the rancheria there is an agreement between the tribe, the state, the county, and the federal government on the maintenance of that agreement, the maintenance of that interchange, and also the construction of it.  So that was something that was a very inter-collaborative—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So there is a maintenance issue here on this particular off ramp.

MR. FONSECA:  Yeah.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what are the, what’s that maintenance cost?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, I think there’s a $100,000 fund, it’s a self-renewing fund that we put in there for repair or accidents or weathering or whatever happens to it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, no maintenance issues on the HOV lane, but maintenance issues on the off ramp, federal, state, and county sharing in some portion of that.

MR. FONSECA:  The maintenance is going to be paid for by the tribe entirely, the off ramp.

MS. LaPEÑA:  But, it will be a coordinated agency effort in terms of the work that’s provided and done.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that was negotiated in an MOU with the county, is that?
MR. FONSECA:  I negotiated in an MOU with CalTrans and the VBIA.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let’s continue on some of the revenue aspects of this.  The tribe can operate Class II electronic games without any revenue shared to the state in this compact, is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  In the new one?  That’s correct.  I don’t think you need anything around a Class II.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So no plans, any plans ___ class two?

MR. FONSECA:  We don’t have any plans, no.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And same with table games?  No revenue requirements there.

MR. FONSECA:  No, I don’t think there’s any revenue requirements at all.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Table games?  

MR. FONSECA:  Excuse me?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Table games at your . . .

MR. FONSECA:  Yes, we’re going to have approximately 85.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Eighty-five?  There’s no state share for that, correct?

MR. FONSECA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The state, obviously has the ability under your compact to audit the net win.  Is that correct?  So that means the state has access to all documentation?

MR. FONSECA:  Absolutely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In order to calculate the net win.

MR. FONSECA:  Yes. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s talk about the revenue sharing trust fund, obviously an issue for this committee every time we have a compact before us.  The compact specifies that there is insufficient revenue that there’s going to be some state generated payments.  The promise to go to non-gaming tribes—how do you view this in this new compact, revenue sharing trust fund, in terms of what you’re paying and the overall concept of this fund?
MR. FONSECA:  Well, I think it’s beneficial for the gaming tribes to help the non-gaming tribes.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you’ve agreed to pay what, four point--

MR. FONSECA:  Four point six million per year, which is four times the normal share, and—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How did you get to that number?  Why 4.6?  Why?

MR. FONSECA:  Negotiating.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  And was the administration asking for more or you offering more versus . . .

MR. FONSECA:  No, we were, it was kind of a little bit of both.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And it’s higher than the number you are currently paying.  Is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  We were only paying, I think, 1.1 per year.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, they were, the tribe was receiving—

MR. FONSECA:  But, we were, no, no, no.  We were receiving 1.1 per year.  So we weren’t paying anything.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what’s your thoughts on this being a percentage of revenue versus some sort of set dollar amount?

MS. LaPEÑA:  The revenue sharing?

MR. FONSECA:  I like the, well, if you ask my personal opinion, I like that.  The set amount.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, the set amount, versus the—and the reason you like that is . . ?

MR. FONSECA:  I don’t know.  (LAUGHTER) 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just sounds good?

MR. FONSECA:  Let’s just say mathematically it sounds better.

MS. LaPEÑA:  And in our discussions with the Governor’s office, the tribe did make a commitment to the non-gaming tribes, because they have benefited from the RCF and have appreciated that and they wanted to show that they do appreciate that and they wanted to help, so they have the 4.6.  They’re not going to be taking their 1.1.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I get it.  But, why wouldn’t it be based on a percentage of your success?  I mean, why wouldn’t we pay into the revenue sharing trust fund more?  In other words, as a percentage of your revenue.  It’s something I’ve asked every single tribe that’s come before us every single time.
MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, I think because of the revenue sharing being high, you know, if we also put in a percentage of our, into the RSTF, then again, that would be an additional expense and it would be higher shares to the state.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Maybe one last question on this section—obviously, I think you mentioned you can come back for further negotiations, the deed, the revenues aren’t being produced or how does this work?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, there’s many different reasons for the purpose of renegotiation, but I don’t think that it would be our intention to do, you know, specifically earmark that for that purpose.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And there’s no time limit on that, is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  I believe that you can, it’s the term of the compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  Let’s go over, if we could, amendment four, which deals with exclusivity in authorization.  Obviously exclusivity provisions of the amended compacts deal with a core geographic region.  Yours is a hundred mile radius, is that correct?  And did the tribe offer this particular provision, or was it provided by the administration?

MR. FONSECA:  I think it was originally in the compact, wasn’t it?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Yeah, it was something that the tribe demanded for this compact amendment.  We specifically asked for the same exclusivity region, the core demographics that the other amended compacts have in our area.  So Thunder Valley, united offer, and Rumsey at Cache Creek both have the hundred mile exclusivity zone, so we, that was something we specifically asked for.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  And the hundred mile radius zone as compared to the ’99 compact?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, the ’99 compact is a statewide exclusivity, as you know.  The difference is that in this compact, the tribe, if there is a breach of that exclusivity zone, the tribe’s payments would be reduced down to 15 percent.  So the way, the interplay of the breach of exclusivity is a little different in this compact of ’99.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And if exclusivity’s actually breached in these particular geographical regions, tell me what you believe is the recourse for you, the tribe.

MR. FONSECA:  Well, I think that we’ve talked to the state about it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We talked to the state about it?

MR. FONSECA:  Yeah.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me name some of the—

MR. FONSECA:  And I do, and I have heard that it’s already been breached in the area, so . . .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you have heard it’s already been breached?

MR. FONSECA:  Well, I know that there’s card rooms down in Sacramento that are running slot machines.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, that’s worrisome, because, let me, tell me if it’s a yes or no on some of these items.  Number one, if the exclusivity is breached, the first and foremost item in the compact is a termination of the amended compact and no gaming.  Is that one of them?

MR. FONSECA:  Oh, I imagine that would be like the last resort.

MS. LaPEÑA:  There is a reduction of the payment to the state down to the 15 percent level.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   Right, so you’re relieved of making any payments as well, to the general fund if it’s breached?

MS. LaPEÑA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No?  That would mean if you operate 2,000 slots or less then it would mean no payment for the state under your compact?  I think that’s correct.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Yeah, it’s, but not if there’s any expansion then revenue—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right, but then your ramp up is, what’s the number?  Thirty-five hundred?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So from your vantage point there’d be no relief payments to the state, because you’ll already be at 3,500 slots.  Is that your viewpoint?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then you mentioned the 15 percent.  Tell me about that again.  What’s the, that’s another point of recourse.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, you know, I know one of the concerns about these, you know, compact breaches, these allegations is that the tribes could just withhold payments to the state, and that’s something that we did talk about with the Governor’s office, and we do have measures in this agreement where the revenue sharing at 15 percent level would continue.
We would want to, you know, do our meet and confer, and enforce all of our rights under the compact and ensure that our exclusivity is protected.  But, the state is not cut out of the agreement entirely like some had feared.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the, one of the, two more aspects of this particular breach of exclusivity—no intergovernmental agreements be paid for.  Is that another outcome of this?

MS. LaPEÑA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, in other words, you’re obligated to pay, you’re still obligated to pay intergovernmental operations or agreements?

MR. FONSECA:  As far I am, understand, yes. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  And how about the revenue sharing trust fund?  Do you still have to pay the 4.6 set number that you mentioned earlier?

MR. FONSECA:  As far as I know.

MS. LaPEÑA:  That’s a technical, legal question that we, I don’t think we discussed.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So we don’t know if the RSTF fund is going to be funded or not if some how there’s a breach?

MS. LaPEÑA:  I wouldn’t go that far.  You know, the tribe’s been very ___ clear about their commitment to the non-gaming tribes.  And also they do have the provision in their compact where any general fund payments could be used to offset any shortfalls.  So that is, that vehicle’s there. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.  So, let’s—the answer is we don’t know what happens.

MS. LaPEÑA:  As far as that 4.6, that’s not a scenario we’ve explored that I would—I don’t see any language in the compact that would bar us to not pay.  I mean, the contribution to the state would lower, would be lowered.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But, your set number would stay the same, 4.6.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let’s go on to amendment five, which is the testing of games.  Not much to address here other than some observations.  What’s the comparison from your vantage point of the standards of the 1999 compacts that this compact when it comes to the testing of games?  What would you say are the major differences?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, the ’99 compact, I’m sure many of you know, it was negotiated at a time where the state didn’t have expertise and agency to inspect the gaming devices, the Gaming Control Commission is interesting in doing that.  The state is interested in doing that.  And there’s a public perception that all of us are concerned about.  And so we do want to ensure that the tribe, it’s clear to the public that the games are inspected, that we will follow the federal minimum internal control standards, and that the machines can be inspected by the tribal gaming agency which who still is the primary regulator of gaming on the reservation.  But, the state can have access to that information.  They can audit our information, and they can also do their own independent tests to ensure and verify our findings. 
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so I think one of the major differences is that we have a State Gaming Control Commission to provide some sort of random inspections as compared to 1999.  So this is a huge step in terms of trying to make sure the games’ integrity is kept forward.  Is that correct?

MR. FONSECA:  That is correct.

MS. LaPEÑA:  The language of the compact is different, but I’m not sure—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The ’99 compacts had no language.

MS. LaPEÑA:  --what the Gaming Control Commission, you know, how, what their position is on their authority.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess I’m just making the point in 1999 there was no random aspect of this, and now you have that in this particular compact, which is a positive ____.  Let’s go on to amendment six, the building codes.  The amended compacts require that all future projects needs some sort of specified building and safety code requirements.  And these, fine with you as these . . ?  

MR. FONSECA:  Oh, yeah.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s your view base?

MR. FONSECA:  It says it’s, this is for the benefit of the tribe.  Building codes are there for a purpose.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, I guess maybe my question is are any projects grandfathered in, or is this ongoing as soon as the compact is ratified?

MS. LaPEÑA:  In 1999 the tribe agreed to follow the state and local standards, so the building codes stay the same as they were in ’99 for this tribe.  They didn’t opt under the federal standards.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The hotel and casino projects, ADA compliant.  They’re going to meet all of those requirements as you go forward?  El Dorado County Public Safety Codes, those types of things.

MR. FONSECA:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go onto amendment seven which is patron disputes.  The amended compacts provide a completely new process for patron disputes. It provides for binding arbitration and it also says the tribe waives all sovereign immunity and agrees to enter to a jurisdiction of state and federal courts rationale for that?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, this was something that was in the other compact amendments and site agreements.  Didn’t seem to be new.  It just seemed to be cleaner to do it in the compact.  The immunity waiver is as to the policy so that the policy, you know, the tribe would not raise sovereign immunity as a defense of a claim against the policy.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And there is a provision for the establishment of a tribal court system?  Is that just part and parcel of other compacts?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, that’s something we asked specifically requested.  We do have a tribal court at Shingle Springs.  It’s a burgeoning tribal court.  And we’d like to see our court used to hear these, any complaints or grievances under the compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  To adjudicate patron claims.

MS. LaPEÑA:  And that was something the tribe was doing before, you know, this compact discussion.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let’s go on to amendment eight which is problem gambling.  Anything new here from your vantage point?  How do we address that?
MR. FONSECA:  I believe that they have a, some sort of a, they have, Lakes has a program for the problem gambling.  And I know that part of our security system, we’re going to be identifying them as they come to the door, the known ones anyway.  That’s part of it.  And it’s also something new in the newer casinos with that system, so . . .

And then there’s some other things going on.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, you’ve got employee training, in terms of problem identifying and managing problem gambling, and you also have the provisions, I guess, which are somewhat standard now, self exclusion for problem gambling and involuntary exclusion lists.
MS. LaPEÑA:  Right, and that’s actually made possible because of the, you know, the tribe has the benefit of the new technology and so the surveillance technology is very advanced.  As the chairman said, Lake’s gaming has its own program.  They know how to use this surveillance equipment, and we can identify people that may be self identified, or self excluded or those that we feel have a problem, we can refer them to services that they might need.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.   Let’s go on to the next set of amendments which are inspections, monitoring, compliance, and audits.  These are new sections to the compact?

MS. LaPEÑA:  They are new.  They were, there was language similar in the ’06 compacts and some of their side agreements.  And this, again, is one of those times where we put it right into the compact amendment to make it more clear.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   And the, one of the newer aspects of this particular compact allows the Gaming Control Commission to conduct an annual comprehensive compact compliance review?

MS. LaPEÑA:  That’s right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who offered that?  The administration, or is that something . . ?
MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, it’s a path that everybody’s been going down.  It wasn’t something the tribe objected to, because we are confident the TGA’s been in place for all these years, even though there hasn’t been a casino in operation.  They’re trained.  They know what to look for.  They know what they’re doing and they don’t have any concern about having the state clarify what they’re already doing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that would include the, what currently the minimum internal control standards under the National Indian Gaming Commission, so all of these standards, federal and state, ____ in support of and they are all inclusive within the compact?

MS. FONSECA:  We don’t have a problem with that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you can, these are standards you believe you can live within and operate under?

MS. FONSECA:  Exactly.

MS. LaPEÑA:   And ____ are something that we all know and we, the regulars know well.  They’re trained to ensure that the facility operates ____.
SENATOR FLOREZ:   Okay.  And at what point, given the time frame you mentioned of January, if the compacts are ratified, where are you in terms of establishing these controls right now?  Planning process, implementation, where are you at that?

MS. LaPEÑA:  The tribe has enacted all of the ordinances under the ’99 compact.  The Gaming Commission has been operating since 1996 when they had the first casino.  They are currently interviewing and backgrounding employees and doing all the work that needs to be done to open the facility.  Our facility licensing process with the, on the federal level is underway.  We have no reason to be concerned that, you know, we haven’t met every standard whether it’s the tribe’s standards, the state, the county, or the federal.  We believe that by August 15th we will have all of our ordinances and regulations in place.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go onto the public work place, health, safety, and liability aspects of the compact.  Here the tribe has, is going to purchase public liability insurance of about $10million per occurrence.
MS. FONSECA:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that, in tort liability ordinance is also conform to California tort law?

MS. FONSECA:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   Okay.  And you’re also going to have a $3 million employment practices liability insurance policy.  These all standard, correct?

MS. FONSECA:  I believe so.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Yeah, and we have already acquired that insurance.  All of those policies are in place.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And California law governs under your compact the claims of harassment, retaliation, and employment discrimination?  Is that under California?

MS. LaPEÑA:  That’s right.  The tribe will have an ordinance and there will be rules and regulations available to anyone that has a grievance.  There’s a process set out that does track state law.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You say tribal rule will have an ordinance meaning it doesn’t, and what are you doing now?
MS. LaPEÑA:  No, as far as this compact requires a new ordinance, and we’re writing that now.  And you know, when the Legislature hopefully ratifies this compact, then we will have a compact and operate under that, the new ordinance.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  What is under, what’s, what is in effect now, given all the employment discrimination issues and retaliation, harassment?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, for all of the tribes with ’99 compacts, that was something that wasn’t addressed that would go through—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I get it, but what do you have now?  Nothing?

MS. LaPEÑA:  There are no, there’s no facility.

MS. FONSECA:  Well, we have some stuff that’s within the tribal government, but other than that, we’re not running a facility, so we don’t ___.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when do you expect these to be . . ?

MS. FONSECA:  The day the facility opens, at least.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go on to the workers’ compensation section.  I don’t have any questions there.  The mitigation of off-reservation impacts.  Under these provisions, you are to do an environmental impact?

MS. FONSECA:  Yeah, every time I expand.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you have how many days to, 55 days or something of that sort, to get with local and county governments.  How does that process work?  Is that your normal today?

MS. FONSECA:  No, it was something that I think us and the county came up with collectively.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the county’s obligation in terms of itself, building anything ____ adverse impact on your facility?  Did you guys discuss that or county can use—how does the county interact when they want to build something?

MS. FONSECA:  They send us an EIR thing for our comments, and we generally comment on them.  But, the county doesn’t come to us for too much, too many items that need permission for, so . . .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just the other way around, right?

MS. FONSECA:  Yeah.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Well, I mean, the exception is, you know, where are the cultural resources that would be affected.  And so during the general planning process, there’s a consultation component to that.  So, and that’s something the tribe is very active in doing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in the MOU signed with El Dorado County was September of 2006?

MS. FONSECA:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  And has any, can you change that MOU given this new compact and can you give us just a general overview of the mitigation agreement with the county?

MS. FONSECA:  You want to answer that one?

MS. LaPEÑA:  Okay.  Well, the county mitigation, you know, is something that was ___ to because of litigation that was ongoing.  As a result of the settlement of that litigation, the tribe will be paying the HOV costs, the 5.2.  They will also be paying for sheriff and emergency services.  They’re paying for direct payments to the county, and the MOU that the tribe has entered into with the county satisfies the terms of this compact for this existing facility, this being built.  If there’s going to be an expansion, we will meet with the county.  If it’s agreed to by both parties, we will develop a TEIR and analyze off-reservation impacts.  And this MOU does also provide for increased payments to the county based on the number of additional machines that we put into play.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Let me, let’s go onto the last section of the compact.  And I would like to say welcome Senator Battin who’s been sitting through this process.  I failed to recognize him when the hearing began and say the only reason I’m asking all these complex questions is because Senator Battin already knows the answers to most of these having, being the resident expert in the Legislature on tribal gaming compacts from the ’99 compacts all the way to today.  So I do want to thank Senator Battin for being here and I know he must be rolling his eyes saying these are such no-brainer questions.  Why is the chairman asking this?  But, this is the impact of term limits, Senator Battin, so allow me to ask my questions if possible.  

So, let me just ask the last question, if I could, on the license of financial sources.  These are basically questions dealing with the tribe’s labor provisions and plans.  At the end of this particular compact it doesn’t make any reference nor provides any changes to the 1999 labor standards.  And I’m wondering is the labor standards of the 1999 compact still in effect under this particular compact.  

MS. LaPEÑA:  The TLRO still is in effect.  We have entered into an agreement with labor.  And something that’s outside this compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Can you give us a general, big picture update on that?

MS. LaPEÑA:  It’s not something that we’ve discussed or we have an agreement with labor to discuss here today.  Maybe there’s a representative here who could speak on their view, but you know, this tribe has made it very, it’s important for them to protect their employees and to ensure that employees have rights.  The tribe will make sure that their operation’s managed effectively and hopefully there will be no need for a union organization of collective bargaining there.  It’s dependent on the tribe and how they operate their facility.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So do you really think that answer’s going to suffice and we’re not going to get some indication of whether or not there’s--I’m kidding you.  So, in other words, your ongoing discussions, big picture, outside of the compact with the labor on what, how this particular facility will operate.  That’s good enough for me.  So, that’s just, I’m just wondering if that characterizes it. 

MS. LaPEÑA:  That does.  It characterizes it well.  We have, we don’t believe we have an issue with labor.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, I would like to thank you for answering my questions, and particularly on the record.  I would like to tell you that there is a, I believe we’ve gone amendment through amendment through this.  I think it’s pretty thorough.  Thank you very much.  Think you’ve done a great job.  And I’d like Senator Battin if there’s any questions or comments.

SENATOR JIM BATTIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Mr. Chairman, very happy to see you here.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You, too.

SENATOR BATTIN:  I’ve had the privilege of being up to Shingle Springs, I don’t know, three or four times now.  I just was up last week and it’s remarkable the change from what you’ve done.  And I can speak from actually dealing with the tribe back, and I was trying to think of this last night.  It was the mid to late ‘90s is when you were working on a bill at the time trying to get that overpass done.  And for those that haven’t had the opportunity to go up there, it’s almost impossible to explain what they have to do to get to the reservation right now.  ___ have to go through, they have to drive through a homeowners’ association area, but that just doesn’t do it justice.  Because in my mind, it’s like driving down the street.  This is going up and around and down and over and over across a bridge and it’s quite a meandering way.  And I can imagine that the neighbors—I would, if I was a neighbor, I wouldn’t really want you to have a casino and drive through my, that area.  So that the tribe from way back then was trying to fix this with the overpass.  And it’s taken up to, we were standing on it the other day.  it’s very impressive to see the progress and go so far.
I had one question and Senator Flores covered this very well, and I won’t belabor the points on it, because he’s gone through all the, in detail with all the points here.  We’ve talked about this and I’ll just say it for the record, as well.  In terms of when you and how you pass this bill, I don’t believe that there’s a problem in the Senate at all.  Nor do I believe there’s going to be a problem in the Assembly.  And I would just encourage you when you introduce this is to put an urgency measure on it.  That gives you a lot of ability to—when it’s done, Governor, it will be ratified, it’ll be done, it’ll go into effect.  That will give you the freedom to be able to open up when you want to.  I know you’ve got plans when you’re plan open, but it’ll just give you the freedom to have even a soft opening.  And if it doesn’t pass, the rules have been where you can just literally, the authors carried it a steps back and says I’m stripping the urgency out and then it becomes a majority vote bill.  
You risk nothing, because I believe that you’ll get the majority at the very minimum, but I do actually believe that you’ll get two-thirds vote in both the Senate and the Assembly.  Now I can speak with a little more confidence with tribal gaming in the Senate than I can with the Assembly, I grant you.  But, I just really, I would ask you to consider that just for your own benefit. 

I am very happy, as I said, when I started, to see you here.  It’s very encouraging.  I think that the facility there is going to really be a great success.  And one thing I didn’t mention when we were up there is there’s a section that you have on the second floor dedicated to child care and kids.  That’s a very, that’s amazing just in how much space you’ve dedicated to that, because, you know, you’re not, it’s not a money-making area for you.  That’s a taking care of workers and the patrons area for you.  And that should be noted and you should be commended on that.
That’s all I have.  I’ll be happy to strongly support it as it moves through the Senate.

MS. FONSECA:   Thank you very much.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you for testifying.  We appreciate it.  Okay.  Let’s have, if we could, the Administration.  Sylvia Cates and we also have a representative from the Department of Finance.  I would not do pronouncing your last name justice, so I will allow you to introduce yourself.  And then I will have a few questions, not many, on the compact and its structure.  I think the tribal chair did a very good job of filling in for you and explaining most of the provisions.  But, I do have some questions on some of the thought processes moving forward.
Let’s start, if we could, by just you introducing yourselves and then I have some questions.

MS. SYLVIA CATES:  Thank you.  My name is Sylvia Cates.  I am in the Deputy Legal Affairs Secretary in the Governor’s Office of Legal Affairs.

MR. ZLATKO THEODOROVIC:  And I’m Zlatko Theodorovic representing Director Mike Genest from the Department of Finance. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you, both, for being here.  Let’s get right to the revenue contributions, if we could.  Obviously, well, let’s talk about the facility first.  I think you heard me mention old compact 1999 had two facilities. This compact, one facility.  Thought process in terms of the rationale for that for the Governor’s office or . . .

MS. CATES:  There was a negotiated point with the tribe and a number of facilities and as you know, the 1999 compacts were modeled and all had the same number of facilities.  The parties agreed that for this particular site and for the plans of the tribe, one facility was appropriate.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  One facility with up to 5,000 slots cap.

MS. CATES:  That’s correct.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of their revenue contribution, I think we went over the fact that we were talking about slot machine revenue versus slot machine physical—what did we, did you allow, how did we get to that number?  Is it market studies?  I know the tribe mentioned market studies.  Do these, check on those, are these your estimates?  I mean, how did we get to that?

MS. CATES:  The 5,000 number?  That, again, wasn’t a—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, versus unlimited.  Unlimited machines.

MS. CATES:  The Governor’s office and the last few compacts has put a limit on the number of machines.  The numbers are negotiated with the tribe.  The tribes do their own market studies.  They have pretty good idea of their future plans over the next 20 years.  And for this particular compact, the tribe felt this gave them the number of machines they needed for future growth as they testified to earlier.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I guess the question I have is that the Governor’s office in the last couple of compacts you’ve mentioned moving towards a set capped amount of machines, and yet at the same time, we’re seeking revenue enhancements for the state.  I mean, why tie the tribe to a certain cap versus an unlimited environment as we have in some of the prior compacts?  If we’re trying to maximize revenues for the state. 

MS. CATES:  We are trying to have realistic projections and what can be anticipated for the life of the compact.  And as the chairman noted earlier, if the market changes, the demographics in the state of California change such that the tribe feels it wants to increase that number, they do have the option to come back and seek a compact amendment at that time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s talk about the 20 percent and the 25 percent.  Twenty percent up to 200 million.  Twenty-five percent net win above 200 million.  How does that work so we can better understand it?  How, for example, the tribe’s net win is 400 million a year.  Tribe pays $40 million on its first 200 million.  How does this, take me through some of that.

MS. CATES:  The calculations?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah.

MS. CATES:  I’ll do the best I can.  I should also note that there are two representatives from the Gambling Control Commission--

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

MS. CATES:  --who, if I get in a bind over audit details, they’re prepared to  come up and further explain.  The—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m just trying to figure out the lines.  So, in other words, you have 20 million, excuse me, 20 percent to the state based on net win up to 200 million.  Correct?

MS. CATES:  that’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then you have 25 for its net win above 200 million.  Is that correct?

MS. CATES:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, does that mean 40 million based on the first 200 million and then 50 million based on the net win above 200 million for a total of 90 million?

MS. CATES:  That’s right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Or does that mean 25 percent of the entire 400 net win which gives us $100 million to the state, because if you think about the two lines, I mean why the distinction and if that’s the case, you know, are we losing 10 million out of that particular structure?
MS. CATES:  No.  No, the way it’s, it’s not, it’s not a losing, the way it’s structured was negotiated with that for the revenue, zero to 200, that 20 percent will be fixed.  And then if the tribe earns more than the 200 million, that’s when the 25 percent would kick and they would pay 25 percent on any amount above.  And I believe there are several other compacts with that type of formula, although there may have been more tiers in some of the earlier compacts.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It seems as though, at least compared to other compacts, the actual percentage of net win is higher in this compact for the first 200 million as compared to other compacts.  Why is that?

MS. CATES:  The compact revenue provisions were all negotiated as a package and as the tribe, Michelle LaPeña testified, it is difficult to compare without having all the proprietary numbers for the other tribes where this compact and where this tribe’s payments would fall in the range of compacts.  But, it’s negotiated as a package in economic terms, so they have to be looked at as a whole.  Partly the revenue sharing percentages, the RSTF payments and the various other terms come together to make that revenue package.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The, let’s, we have the Department of Finance here.  The, we talked a bit about the deduction of the 5.2 million a year and the contribution to the state.  So in other words, they got to pay for the HOV 5.2, something of that sort for Highway 50 HOV lanes.  And yet the projection of the state’s general fund for 2008-2008 is 38 million.  And I guess the question is 38 million that we’re projecting in this particular budget minus the 5.2 million?  Or is it as inclusive for the 5.2 million?  How accurate is the 38 million?  Is this just the ballpark, or . . ?

MR. THEODOROVIC:  Well, it’s as best an estimate as consistent with our prior practice and the methodologies that have been adopted by the Legislature in terms of the revenue estimates for the budgets.  With respect to the 5.2 in our revenue estimate, we had it as an offset, so the $38 million is a net of the $2.6 million that would be paid.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so the 38 million is half of what the projected revenue stream is?
MR. THEODOROVIC:  It’s based on the fiscal year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Fiscal year, right.  So it would be 76 million for the entire fiscal year.  

MR. THEODOROVIC:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thirty-eight million is what we’re counting for this particular year.

MR. THEODOROVIC:  And just to make a note, there, we have provided this revenue estimate, but I don’t believe that the conference committee budget reflects this revenue included in it at this point.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So this is the Governor’s best guess, given this particular compact being ratified and I’m wondering whether or not the $76 million, even if you have it in $38 million is actually based on a number of 2,000 slots.  Is that correct?  Because I think that tribal folks just told us that they would be up to 2,000 slots.  Or would you be up to 2,000 slots by then?  You would be.  Okay. 

MR. THEODOROVIC:  Yeah, we assume no further expansion beyond the 2,000 in an effort to be a bit more conservative to not create, you know, unreasonable revenue estimates.  But, clearly to the extent that they were able to provide us information as to when they think the additional machines may come online, we may be able to put that in the long-term revenue projection.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let me ask you about maybe back now to the legal side of it.  There in the compact there was a definition of gaming devices.  And definition excluded electronic computer, other technological aides that would qualify as Class II gaming.  Is that correct?

MS. CATES:  I believe all the compacts exclude Class II, because the state does not have regulatory authority over Class II in the language, and I can look at it, is to clarify that we’re not reporting to regulate Class II which is regulated by the National Indian Gaming Commission.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So in other words, this isn’t necessarily to incorporate the findings of the Attorney General’s opinion related to multi-station gaming devices, but something you see more as a federal level type of conformity.

MS. CATES:  The reference to Class II, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so no attempt here.  This is just standard language that moving forward on these types of computer based or terminal based devices?

MS. CATES:  Yes.  Just, excuse me a moment while I open the language.  That’s right.  Under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act the tribes do have authority to use certain technological aides for their Class II machines.  And NIGC had some proposed regulations out.  I think, believe they’ve been withdrawn and they may be coming out again to further define what would qualify as a technological aid for Class II.  But, this language, just is clarifying that they’re not prohibited from using legal Class II aides under this compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The auditing aspects of the tribal’s net win—is this provide for, from your vantage point, greater transparency and from the state’s perspective, more oversight?
MS. CATES:  I believe that these terms are similar to some previous compacts.  The tribe provides on a quarterly basis a certification of the quarterly net win.  Then annually, they will provide a certification conducted by an independent outside auditor.  In addition, the state can conduct its own audit of the net win.  That would be the Gambling Control Commission.  Then once a year, the tribe will also, as under the 1999 compacts, conduct a full audit of the gaming operation.
One new provision in this compact is that the tribe has also agreed to provide the state with a copy of the audited financial statements that it sends to the National Indian Gaming Commission.  So that’s a provision that was in the MOUs for the 2006 and seven and that’s been incorporated into the compact itself.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The amended compact also provides for contributions to the state to be used to securitize bonds.  Is that standard language in the rest of these?

MS. CATES:  Excuse me for a moment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m not sure if the administration is planning to utilize this provision.

MS. CATES:  As far as I know, there aren’t any plans right now.  I can defer to Finance on that.

MR. THEODOROVIC:  I’m not aware of anything at this time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We are a $15 billion deficit right now in our budget, so I’m just kind of wondering whether or not the language there provides for that.  Is that standard language in terms of some of our legal agreements that we would amend the compact that allows contributions to the state to be used to secure, securitize bonds?

MS. CATES:  There is language in many of the compacts that allows that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  And the rationale for that flexibility?

MS. CATES:  Yes.  It’s to allow the state flexibility from the tribe’s perspective, it’s not been an issue for the tribes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s talk about the revenue sharing trust fund.  I think we’ve mentioned earlier the tribe mentioned that this is an increase in terms of what they would be paying on the set amount.  And I believe the tribe currently receives 1.1 million from the revenue sharing trust fund.  I believe that was the number.  And I’m trying to get an idea of whether or not how much of that comes from license fees and how much comes from backfill from the SDF of the 1.1 million.  

MS. CATES:  It would be a Finance question.

MR. THEODOROVIC:  Yeah, I don’t think that we necessarily define a share of how the revenue sharing trust fund is funded and whether or not it would be a portion of direct revenue.  It’s just we make the necessary funds available to make the payments to all the non-gaming tribes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And is that from your vantage point the 4.6 million into the RSTF, is that significant increase or how would you term, how did we arrive at that amount, I think is the question I asked the chairman.

MS. CATES:  It was one of the negotiated financial terms that was part of the financial package.  Yet, it is a substantial payment.  The governor’s office is very committed to the securing the health of the RSTF and to, so that the non-gaming tribes can draw on that, the full amount from that fund.

MR. THEODOROVIC:  And in fact that they don’t, they won’t no longer be receiving an additional payment.  It’s actually benefited the 5.7 million to 4.6 ____ receiving the payment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s talk about exclusivity, if we could.  I think we mentioned earlier the 100 mile radius rationale for that from the Administration’s point of view, why was that selected?

MS. CATES:  That was a discussion with the tribe and was agreed upon number.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And does it differ from your vantage point in terms of the operation of the machines themselves?  I mean is this exclusivity is equivalent to the $5,000 cap from your vantage point?

MS. CATES:  In terms of . . ?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What you gave.  Five thousand slots and capped.  The exclusivity for 100 mile radius.

MS. CATES:  The 100 miles is reasonable when compared with other compacts.  That’s in the parameters of other negotiated compacts.  And the Administration felt it was an appropriate exclusivity zone.  It is a reduction, as the tribe had noted, from the statewide exclusivity in the 1999 compacts, but the exclusivity provisions are different.  The tribes do have, there are different rules under the new compacts if there are breaches of exclusivity.  So it was all discussed as a package.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me just go over a few other items.  Testing of games, mentioned earlier, having the ability to do random.  And I believe it’s up to four random inspections of slot machines in the new compact.

MS. CATES:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Per year?

MS. CATES:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And at the end of the day are these new requirements somehow giving us greater assurances that we’re going to have, if you will, the integrity of the games themselves are going to be protected and we can assure the state’s getting a good deal out of this?

MS. CATES:  Yes.  There are, these are strong provisions.  They do require testing by independent laboratories.  They do, not only authorize the state Gambling Control Commission to conduct the random inspections, but there are also provisions where they can go in at other times if they have reason to believe that there’s some problem.  The new compliance review compliance review provisions is another mechanism for ensuring that there is integrity of the games and the machines themselves.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go on to the patrons’ disputes.  I think I mentioned earlier to the chair the waive, somehow the waiving or some sort of limited waiver of sovereign immunity as it relates to arbitration.  That differs from the 1999 compacts?  Or is it . . ?

MS. CATES:  Yes, the tribe has agreed to waive sovereign immunity for purposes of arbitration.  If a patron dispute gets to that stage, the compacts provide that the patrons can first be required to go through an administrative tribal process.  Hopefully, most disputes will get resolved at that stage, but if they have not, then the arbitration provisions are available to a patron to invoke.  And the tribe has agreed to waive sovereign immunity for those purposes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what was your thought process on the establishment of the tribal court system in this particular compact as compared to the other compacts we’ve seen?

MS. CATES:  this compact, I believe there were—apologize for not remembering the number.  A few of the, compacts negotiated in 2006 had a similar provision.  It’s a reopener provision at the tribe can invoke and come back to the state and seek negotiations on what would be the terms of having certain types of disputes first go through the tribal court system.  But, that is a reopener that’s in this compact.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the issues of problem gambling, would you say that these are standard provisions as reflected in the other compacts?
MS. CATES:  The provisions in this compact are very similar to the problem gambling provisions that were incorporated into the MOUs for the amendments last year.  And I believe there are a couple other compacts, I’m thinking Yurok in particular, has a very similar provision.  This has not been uncontroversial with the tribes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The, one of the sections, moving onto the inspection and monitoring compliance internal controls section of the compact points to the Gaming Control Commission able to conduct these annual comprehensive compact compliance reviews.  Does that mean, what does that, is this new and if it’s new, then why haven’t our other compacts been reflective of more annual compliance gaming operation types of performance audits?

MS. CATES:  We believe that under the 1999 compacts and other compacts the Commission does have this authority.  It was discussed with the tribe and incorporated into the compact to clarify that.  it also encourages cooperative effort among the, in between the tribal regulators and the state regulators, so the provision itself is new.  It’s more a clarification and existing authorities.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is this something that we need to put in a compact, on a compact by compact basis?  Or something that can be controlled, can just, should be doing and will be doing?

MS. CATES:  The provisions of, we’ve, the Administration felt it was good to have the language in the compacts just to, for clarification.  Of course, we think that the compliance reviews are important to be done both at the tribal and state level.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is there any provision that requires a tribe to conduct its gaming activities—it’s been mentioned earlier, not just by the state, but at the federal level.  So these are combined, I think I asked the chair earlier.  These are federal and state types of requirements that allow them to, in terms of operating under internal controls?

MS. CATES:  Yes.  The minimum internal control provisions, these are new in a compact.  This compact is the first one to be brought before the committee that has them actually attached as an appendix.  It was felt it was good to have them out there wherever everyone can see them.  They’re based on the federal controls.  The difference is that the Class II provisions that are in the federal mix are not in the appendix, because the state doesn’t regulate the Class II.  That’s a federal obligation.  And they do establish that the tribal meter exceed those federal mix as reflected in the appendix.

The provision also is in the compact that every three years the tribal regulators and the state regulators will sit down and review the mix.  That’s to allow for accommodation of changes in federal regulation, over state, or industry standards or new technology, they will sit down every three years and review those controls and update them as desirable and as appropriate.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  Thank you, both.  I appreciate it.  Okay.  Let’s go on to the last section of the hearing which is questions for County of El Dorado.  Thank you for joining us.

MR. MIKE APPLEGARTH:  My pleasure, Mr. Chairman.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why don’t you go ahead and give us your name for the record.  And then I’m going to ask you a few questions and go from there.

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Thank you.  It’s Mike Applegarth.  I’m a senior administrative analyst with the El Dorado County Chief Administrative Office.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me just, I just want to go over a few questions related to MOU signed by the tribe and the County.  I think it’s mentioned September, 2006, that the terms of the MOU are binding.  Is that correct?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And there was the MOU from at least my understanding puts to rest some kind of longstanding dispute between the county and the tribe that was pending litigation in federal and state courts. 

MR. APPLEGARTH:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how much will the tribe pay to the county over the next 20 years to mitigate the impact of the casino?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Approximately 192 million with some possibility of increase due to expansion.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that’s over 20 years.

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And when will the tribe begin to make payments to the County?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  The tribe has already made one law enforcement advance payment which was spelled out in the provisions of the MOU.  Most of the payments occur on the 365th day after the first day of opening.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the County’s position in terms of position of payments under the MOU fully address the gaming and the interchange projects?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, in other words, those go first to the county and everything else after that?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the HOV lane that we discussed earlier, you’re understanding also is the tribe’s paying about $104 million over the 20 years by $.2 million a year?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the HOV lane created—is that to take into account anticipated growth in the county?  I mean, how would you, how’s the County view that particular HOV lane project?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  HOV lane project was probably the most crucial concern for the Board of Supervisors during the MOU negotiation.  Highway 50 completely bisects El Dorado County from the west end to the east end, bisects at north/south.  It’s the lifeline for all the communities in the county and any development that was going to put that many cars on the main line we felt needed adequate mitigation.  The tribe’s payment to the county to do that we felt adequately addresses our concerns. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the construction of the HOV lanes will occur . . ?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  CalTrans informed me last week in fact that they’re preparing to go out to bid in the spring if everything goes well on phase one of their HOV lane.  Phase two and three which the County will service as a lead agency will be constructed approximately phase two in 2012, and phase three in 2014.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And law enforcement, fire protection, emergency services, the tribe’s paying $500,000 a year over 20 years, $10 million years over the life of the compact.  Have you received any payment from the tribe thus far?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Yes, we did receive an advance payment a few months ago, if I remember correctly.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how is that money used?  What did you do with it?

MR. APPLEGARTH:   There was some discussion about how to use it as this was the first payment received from the tribe as a result of the project.  I can tell you the Board of Supervisors allocated 15 new deputy sheriff positions in this fiscal year’s budget.  Not all were due specifically to the impact of the casino project, but that certainly factored into the discussion.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how about the fire districts and emergency service, excuse me, emergency medical services?  Are they entered into this MOU in some formal fashion?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  That’s somewhat removed from the County.  We have separate fire and emergency services districts, and I assume the tribe has entered into a comparable MOU with other emergency services personnel.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The tribe is nodding its head, so maybe you can, someone can shoot up here and just put it on the record in terms of entering into MOUs with the local fire districts and emergency medical service providers.  And when do you believe those negotiations will be concluded if they’re not already.

MS. LaPEÑA:  Chairman, I believe that we are near agreement, and we would expect the fire district to approve our agreement tomorrow evening.  And the JPA ___ emergency services hopefully by end of this week.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate that.  let’s talk about the, at least in your MOU, the section relating to payments to local businesses not who are placed or are placed at a competitive disadvantage and how did the tribe’s going to be paying minimum of 78 million over next 20 years.  How does that work?  I mean, what’s this payment?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  There was some concern on behalf of the community that the, while the gaming establishment was certainly going to draw potential customers to other businesses into the county, particularly the hotel/motel, bed and breakfast type establishments in our county, were concerned that they’d be put at a disadvantage because the tribe would not have to collect our county hotel/motel tax or sales tax.  So that entered into the negotiation for the MOU.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  And this, the payment actually can increase?  Is that right?  So in other, for every 100 slot machines over 2,000 the county can receive an additional 100,000 over the life of the compact?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Yes.   I believe it’s $1,000 per slot the way it works out.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So that’s an increase of as much as 98 million for the county?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Would increase, if the tribe—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Seventy-eight million ____, an additional 20 million.

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Well, I think it will result in $3 million for the county.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the building codes, in terms of grandfathering in the current hotel and casino construction projects, I mean, how would you, how does this work in terms of the building codes from the county’s MOU perspective?
MR. APPLEGARTH:  As part of the MOU, the tribe agreed to comply with county ordinances specific to our local community.  Of particular concern was our grading ordinance does control measures.  We have some issue with naturally occurring asbestos and the tribe agreed to comply with all county’s specific construction standards.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How about the, there was a section provided the tribe and the county agreed to meet no more, no less than annually.  Those are, how does that work?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Well, I think we still have to figure that out.  But, that’s a key component for us, as you know, entering into a new relationship with another government.  I think it, you know, we’ll have to feel our way through that process, but it’s just a way that we can formalize our relationship and agree to meet to discuss mutual concerns.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  and the MOU also talks about the after the project’s been in operation for about seven years, you folks and come together again and to do what?  Renegotiate the MOU or to—

MR. APPLEGARTH:  I believe any party to the MOU could ask for renegotiation. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who asked for that provision?  The County or the tribe?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  I was not party to the negotiation, so I’m not able to answer that question.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go over the dispute resolution.  What happens from your vantage point if disputes aren’t resolved through the informal meet and confer process?  Is this a court . . ?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  I believe there’s some provisions for arbitration and ultimately of interest to the amended compact is what I like to refer to as the superenforceability clause.  I believe it’s Section 10.8.9 which allows the state to ultimately remedy any disagreements that might arise between the county and the tribe regarding the MOU.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And I think it’s interesting being about the MOU at this point is that the tribe actually waives its immunity altogether with the County when there’s this dispute when it comes down to the MOU.  Is that . . ?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So. . . 

MR. APPLEGARTH:  That was a key provision for us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, yeah, it’s probably thee provision.  So who asked for that?  You folks did, obviously.  
MR. APPLEGARTH:  I’m sure we asked for that, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  And MOU, again, maybe tribe might be able to answer with the irrigation district.  Is that done, ongoing, continuing?  Has to do with water, so I mean, at the end of the day, you’re, the tribe’s paying 3.7 million to hook up fees for water service agreements?  

MS. LaPEÑA:  That’s right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that?  How does this work?

MS. LaPEÑA:  The tribe’s actually already made that payment.  EIDs been paid for the connection.  The MOU with El Dorado Irrigation District provides for the tribe to have a new connector, new system that will allow for the tribe to have consistent water supply.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the control of that, exclusive control is with the Water District or the tribe given it’s on tribal land.

MS. LaPEÑA:  The MOU requires an easement be granted to EID.  That’s something that is before the Bureau of Indian Affairs.  And we have a completed appl9ciation and are waiting for a signature from the Central California agency.  That’ll grant EID easements.  They already have an easement, you know, all water districts are utilities are required to have an easement from the Bureau of Indian Affairs on these federal lands.  So they have an easement already.  It’s just going to expand it.  There’s some connectors or some additional lines that are now going to be included in the easement. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in the event of a drought or some sort of water situation in terms of procedures, I mean, is that the tribe or is it the water district?  You’re like any other water customer?

MS. LaPEÑA:  That’s right.  The tribe is a water customer and are paying for the water that they’ll be using.  If there is a, some kind of unforeseeable, you know, water shortage, then we would need to meet with the EID to resolve that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Okay.  Any other issues that the county of El Dorado would like to share with the committee?

MR. APPLEGARTH:  No, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.   Thank you very much.

MR. APPLEGARTH:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Public comment?  Okay.  We’re now at the portion of public comment.  So anyone in support of the project, now would be the time to come up.   And those who are in opposition to this particular compact, right after this.  Ms. Wei, thanks for joining us.  

MS. ANGIE WEI:  thank you very much, Mr. Chair, Senator Battin, Angie Wei on behalf of the California Labor Federation.  There have been ongoing dialogues between the tribe and the, our affected union about labor protections.  We’re assured and confident that there will be an enforceable right to organize at the Shingle Springs casino and appreciate the work of the tribes and this committee to help get us there.  And I am looking forward to another closer place to play Pai Gow at a union house.  
We look forward to working with the tribe and getting this compact ratified.  Thank you, very much.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED:  Pai Gow’s your game?

MS. WEI:  Yeah, you push a lot.

MR. MIKE SPROUL:  good morning.  My name is Mike Sproul and I’m the founder of the Food Bank of El Dorado County.   For almost 10 years I worked in the trenches side by side with the community to establish and maintain a safety net for our at risk population.  We teamed with businesses, faith based organizations, school, service clubs, and county agencies.  This collaborative’s where the rubber meets the road.

This long-term relationship with communities throughout El Dorado County affords me deep insight into the wants and needs of regular Joes in El Dorado County.  These citizens, in my opinion, are the majority of El Dorado County are often unheard.  They are too busy just surviving and taking care of their families during a tough time in California.  Two thousand good paying jobs that will offer employment to a broad ____ workers giving preference to local residents, millions of dollars over the next 20 years to the county which will be used to address future impacts, strengthen public services and to protect and enrich the quality of life of all El Dorado County residents.

For these families the Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians and the Red Hawk Casino project at the cavalry arriving just in time to address this serious economic downturn.  I ask you today on behalf of thousands of El Dorado County residents, please support this amended compact.  This partnership will give opportunity and provide hope to El Dorado County residents who desperately need it.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, very much.  Any other comments, support for this compact?  Thank you.  Thanks for joining us.  
MS. JUDY MATAT:  Thank you.  Thank you, ladies and gentlemen.  Judy Matat.  I’m the president of the Shingle Springs/Cameron Park Chamber of Commerce.  Been on the board of directors for about eight years.  And I would like to say that this Shingle Springs Cameron Park Board of Directors has supported the Shingle Springs Rancheria Tribe of Miwok Indians in their quest for financial independence and access to their lands based on the belief that the entire community will benefit.

The positive impacts of this business venture by the tribe is very important for the residual income benefits to our community.  And the county residents in the form of employment and additional tax base.  I would like to ask since Governor Schwarzenegger has asked that the amended compact supported.  We hear a vote.  You will determine the economic strength of the tribe in El Dorado County as envisioned by our Chamber many years ago.  Thank you very much.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate that.  Okay.  Any other comments in support?  Any folks in opposition to the compact?  Okay. Seeing and hearing none, this might be the shortest compact hearing we’ve every had in this committee.  Maybe it’s due to lack of members, but I think actually this is a pretty tight compact.  It looks very good.  Very positive.  I do want to particularly thank the Chairman and the entire tribe for negotiating a compact that we could actually go through and made a lot of sense.  And I think it’s a good deal for the State of California and I think it’s a great deal for the tribe and congratulations on a very successful negotiation with the Governor’s office.
With that, I’d like to ask Senator Battin if he had any comments.

SENATOR BATTIN:  I’m good, thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We're going to adjourn the Government Organization Committee.  We’re going to recommend that this compact be placed on the floor, and hopefully we can move it out of the Senate to, very quickly.  Thank you, very much.  The meeting is now adjourned. 
# # # # #
1
44

